UNITED
NATIONS E

Economic and Social Council
PROVI SI ONAL

E/ 1996/ SR. 45
21 January 1998

ORI G NAL: ENG.I SH

Subst anti ve session of 1996
PROVI SI ONAL  SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 45t h MEETI NG
Hel d at Headquarters, New York,
on Tuesday, 23 July 1996, at 10 a.m

Presi dent : M. GERVAIS (Cote d'lvoire)

CONTENTS
COORDI NATI ON QUESTI ONS (conti nued)

(c) JONT AND CO SPONSORED UNI TED NATI ONS PROGRAMMVE ON HUVAN
| MMUNCDEFI CI ENCY VI RUS/ ACQUI RED | MMUNGCDEFI CI ENCY SYNDROVE (cont i nued)

ECONOM C AND ENVI RONVENTAL QUESTI ONS: REPORTS OF SUBSI DI ARY BODI ES, CONFERENCES
AND RELATED QUESTI ONS (conti nued)

(h) 1 NTERNATI ONAL DECADE FOR NATURAL DI SASTER REDUCTI ON (conti nued)

SOC AL, HUNMANI TARI AN AND HUMAN RI GHTS QUESTI ONS:  REPORTS OF SUBSI DI ARY BODI ES,
CONFERENCES AND RELATED QUESTI ONS (conti nued)

(a) SPECIAL ECONOM C, HUMANI TARI AN AND DI SASTER RELI EF ASSI STANCE
(conti nued)

(g) CRIME PREVENTI ON AND CRI M NAL JUSTI CE

(h) NARCOTI C DRUGS

Corrections to this record should be subnmtted in one of the working
| anguages. They should be set forth in a menorandum and al so incorporated in a
copy of the record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this
docunent to the Chief, Oficial Records Editing Section, room DC2-750, 2 United
Nations Pl aza.

96- 80986 (E) /...



E/ 1996/ SR. 45
Engl i sh
Page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.30 a. m

COORDI NATI ON QUESTI ONS (conti nued) (E/ 1996/ L. 34)
(c) JO NT AND CO SPONSORED UNI TED NATI ONS PROGRAMMVE ON HUVAN
| MMUNODEFI CI ENCY VI RUS/ ACQUI RED | MMUNGODEFI CI ENCY SYNDROVE (conti nued)
M. ACEMAH (Uganda), introducing draft resolution E/1996/L.34 entitled
"Report of the Joint and Co- Sponsored United Nations Programre on the Human
| munodefi ci ency Virus/ Acquired | munodeficiency Syndrone", said that Italy,
Kenya, South Africa and Thailand had joined the list of sponsors. Since |ack of
adequat e resources had proved a major constraint in the fight against the
di sease, the sponsors of the draft resolution trusted that the appeal nade in
operative paragraph 6 woul d receive the positive response it deserved.
ECONOM C AND ENVI RONMENTAL QUESTI ONS:  REPORTS OF SUBSI DI ARY BODI ES, CONFERENCES
AND RELATED QUESTI ONS (continued) (E 1996/L. 35)
(h) | NTERNATI ONAL DECADE FOR NATURAL DI SASTER REDUCTI ON (conti nued)
Ms. CHAVES (Costa Rica), speaking on behalf of the Goup of 77 and
China, introduced draft resolution E/1996/L.34 entitled "Internati onal Decade
for Natural Disaster Reduction", which, inter alia, called for the integration
of the Yokohama Strategy and Plan of Action in the coordinated approach taken to
the followup to all recent nmajor United Nations conferences and sumits.
SOCI AL, HUVANI TARI AN AND HUVMAN RI GHTS QUESTI ONS:  REPORTS OF SUBSI DI ARY BODI ES
CONFERENCES AND RELATED QUESTI ONS (continued) (E 1996/L. 33)
(a) SPECIAL ECONOM C, HUMANI TARI AN AND DI SASTER RELI EF ASSI STANCE
(conti nued)
Ms. BROMNE (lreland) introduced draft resolution E/1996/L.33 entitled
"Strengt hening of the coordination of energency hunanitarian assistance of the
Uni ted Nations", which sought to set out a tinmetable for the review of the
United Nations capacity in that field.
(g) CRIME PREVENTI ON AND CRI M NAL JUSTI CE (E/ 1996/ 30)
(h) NARCOTI C DRUGS (A/51/129-E 1996/ 53, E/ 1996/27, E/ 1996/ 38)
Ms. BRYANT (Chief, United Nations O fice at Vienna), introducing the
report of the Secretary-General on the inplenentation of the United Nations



E/ 1996/ SR. 45
Engl i sh
Page 3

Systemwi de Action Plan on Drug Abuse Control (A/51/129-E/ 1996/53), said that
although still at the initial phase, the Systemw de Action Plan could becone a
useful planning tool.

M. OKUN (International Narcotics Control Board) drew attention to the
statenent on the programme budget inplications of draft resolutions Il and IV
of the Conmi ssion on Narcotic Drugs contained in annex |1l of the Conm ssion's
report (E/ 1996/27).

The International Narcotics Control Board was suffering froma worrying
| ack of resource capacity. |Its nmandates had increased in nunber while its
resources had renmined static. Governments had consistently put the fight
agai nst drugs at the top of their agenda w thout providing adequate resources to
prosecute anti-drugs canpaigns effectively. The Fifth Commttee had approved
the creation of two new posts for the secretariat of the International Narcotics
Control Board, neither of which had materialized as a direct result of the
continuing financial crisis. The United Nations International Drug Contro
Programme and the various United Nations bodies involved in the fight against
drugs urgently needed additional resources.

Ms. HOLI KOVA (Czech Republic) expressed her del egation's support for a
speci al General Assenbly session on narcotic drugs and psychotropi ¢ substances
in 1998. The Conmi ssion on Narcotic Drugs should play a key role in the
preparatory process and should continue to support the work of the Internationa
Narcotics Control Board, particularly with regard to nonitoring. Furthernore,
the Council should consider the Commission's proposals with regard to limting
docunentation for agenda itemns.

M. AQUARONE (Net herlands) said that the sunmary of the report of the
International Narcotics Control Board (E/ 1996/38) failed to accurately reflect
t he di scussions that had been held at the Conmi ssion. The Netherlands had
rebutted the summary's criticisns of that country's fidelity to its treaty
obligations and had invited menbers of INCB to come to the Netherlands in
Septenber to see the situation there for thenselves. Those facts cast serious
doubt over the rel evance of the docunent to the work of the Council

M. GARCIA MRITAN (Argentina) said that organized crine on a gl oba
scal e was of increasing concern to the international community. The Secretary-

General should continue to gather the views of various States on the natter with



E/ 1996/ SR. 45
Engl i sh
Page 4

a view to assenbling background materi al ahead of the forthcom ng sixth session
of the Committee on Crime Prevention and Crimnal Justice.

Argentina had repeatedly endorsed the el aboration of a binding | ega
instrunent that would nmake it possible to effectively conbat internationa
trafficking in children for the purposes of pornography and prostitution
Again, the Secretary-General should continue to canvass the views of States with
a viewto drawing up a convention banning trafficking in children. H's
Governnent did not believe that the present rules afforded adequate protection
to minors, and doubted whether an optional protocol to the Convention on the
Rights of the Child regarding the sale of children would provi de the m ni num
necessary guarant ees.

Ms. ALZATE de Cl FUENTES (Col onmbia), while wel conming the inprovenents
that had taken place in the admnistrative managenent of the Conmi ssion on Crine

Prevention and Crimnal Justice, said that there was a need to redefine the
scope and nature of the Commission's activities since its workload had increased
dramatical ly; without adequate prioritization of tasks it would be unable to
cope. The Conmission should actively seek to coordinate its efforts with those
of other international entities. |In order to encourage that process, States
should fornulate criteria for determining which matters required greater
priority or attention. At the sane tinme an effort should be nmade to inprove the
machi nery for consultation and analysis within the Conmi ssion. In that regard,
exi sting procedures and paraneters should be respected in relation to the
i ntroduction, discussion and adoption of resolutions and docunments enanating
fromthe Conm ssion, thereby encouraging constructive debate and pronoting
greater cooperation in crime prevention

M. ROGATCHEV (Russian Federation) said that in considering the topic
of crine, there were certain priority themes, nanmely, international organized

crime, its links with terrorism noney |aundering and corruption, all of which
affected the interests of the international comunity and therefore necessitated
concerted action by all States.

Organi zed crine had recently been associated with increased |evels of
aggression, links with terrorist groups and attenpts to obtain materials which
posed a potential threat to individual countries, regions and the whol e world.
In recent years, the Russian Federation had seen an increase in crine



E/ 1996/ SR. 45
Engl i sh
Page 5

perpetrated by organi zed groups, one in six of which operated at the
i nternational I|evel

The solution to the problemlay in the urgent el aboration of |egislative
instrunents designed to conbat crime. His Governnent had placed particul ar
enphasi s on the | aw nmaki ng aspect of the problem and as a result of neasures
adopt ed over the previous three years approxi mately 14,000 crimnal groups had
been el i m nat ed.

States would have little success in conbating crinme without effective
regi onal and gl obal cooperation. That conclusion had been borne out by the
experience of the Cormonweal th of |ndependent States, where efforts had been
made at both the nultilateral and bilateral level to establish a treaty and
| egal basis for anti-crine neasures. Russian cooperation in anti-crime
initiatives launched by the seven major industrialized countries also served as
a nodel for future joint action by States, possibly under the auspices of the
Uni ted Nations.

H s del egation regarded the Conmmi ssion on Crime Prevention and Crimnal
Justice as the United Nations principal armin dealing with the probl em of
international organi zed crime, and therefore fully supported its work. The
United Nations should play a leading role in setting standards and norns in
crime prevention and crimnal justice, with the Conm ssion subsequently
conpiling informati on on the inplenentation of those standards and norns.

Hi s Governnent endorsed the Conmission's recommendation to the Council that
it should adopt draft resolutions on eliminating violence agai nst women and
preventing illicit international trafficking in children. The Russian
Federation supported the idea of drawing up an international convention on the
latter issue. His delegation also supported the principle of protecting the
envi ronnent through the application of crimnal |aw, and favoured the
formul ation of nodel national legislation in that field. The proposal to
establish an international crimnal court deserved careful consideration and the
views of States on the matter should be given due weight. In addition, his
del egati on supported the Cormittee's opinion that neasures to regulate firearns
shoul d continue to be studied.

Ms. CASTRO de BARISH (Costa Rica), speaking on behalf of the Goup of
77 and China, reiterated its support for the inplementation of General Assenbly

resol ution 50/146. The G oup wel comed the proposed strengthening of the crinme

/...



E/ 1996/ SR. 45
Engl i sh
Page 6

prevention and crimnal justice programe and urged the Secretary-General to
all ocate adequate resources to it so that it could fulfil its nandate.

The G oup al so supported the decision, contained in paragraphs 29 and 30 of
General Assenbly resolution 50/214, to upgrade the Crine Prevention and Crim nal
Justice Branch to a division and to reclassify the post of Chief of the Branch
to the D2 level, in addition to the establishnment of the two additional P-3
posts. Those actions were the mini mum necessary to respond to a grow ng nunber
of requests for assistance. The progranme had acconplished a great deal with
scarce resources; those resources nmust be strengthened, especially in the area
of technical assistance.

Ms. BROM (Janmica) noted with appreciation the extensive work of the
crime prevention and crimnal justice programre in the areas of national and
transnati onal organized crine, noney laundering, international |aw and the
environnent and corruption. Her Governnent was fully conmitted to the
i npl ement ation of the Naples Political Declaration and d obal Action Plan
agai nst Organi zed Transnational Crinme and to the Declaration on the Elimnation
of Violence against Wonen. It supported the draft resolution on that subject
and appreci ated the enphasis placed on the prevention of trafficking in children
(draft resolutions IlIl and IV contained in the Conmmi ssion's report).

Turning to the work of the International Narcotics Control Board, she said
that her delegation was inpressed with the thorough approach it had taken to its
work and endorsed the resolutions contained in its report. Her delegation also
supported the convening of a special session of the General Assenbly on drug
abuse.

The PRESIDENT invited the Council to take action on the draft
resol utions contained in chapter I, section A of the report of the Conm ssion

on Crime Prevention and Crimnal Justice on the work of its fifth session
(E/1996/30). He drew attention to annex IV of the report which contained the
statenents of programme budget inplications of draft resolutions IV, V and VI.
Draft resolution |

Draft resolution | was adopt ed.

Draft resolution I
M. HAVDAN (Lebanon) said that while he would not challenge the
wordi ng of the draft resol ution which was a consensus text, he believed that it

coul d be inproved by the addition of the follow ng preanbul ar paragraph



E/ 1996/ SR. 45
Engl i sh
Page 7

"Recal ling the Declaration on the Cccasion of the Fiftieth Anniversary of the
United Nations". The addition of that paragraph woul d provide further incentive
to States to fulfil their responsibilities under the Declaration

M. MEKDAD (Coserver for the Syrian Arab Republic) said that there had
been extensive discussion of the draft declaration in the Third and Sixth
Conmmittees of the General Assenbly, where the inprovenent proposed by Lebanon
had been accept ed.

Ms. BUCK (Canada) said that the draft before the Council represented a
conprom se text, and that it was neither the tine nor the place to add anything
to that finely-balanced resolution. She urged the Council to adopt it by
consensus.

Ms. HAM LTON (Australia) agreed that the proposed anendnent woul d
upset the bal ance of the text.

M. COLOVA (Chile) said that the proposed additi on woul d open the door
to other changes. He urged the Council to respect the consensus achieved in
Vi enna.

M. AKBAR (Pakistan) said that his del egation joined the Syrian Arab
Republic in supporting the addition proposed by Lebanon

M. BYRNE (lreland), speaking on behalf of the European Union, said
that it opposed the reopening of negotiations on the text.

Ms. KATOH (Japan), supported by M. GARCIA MORI TAN (Argentina), said
that the draft resolution should be adopted as it stood.

Ms. TAMLYN (United States of Anerica) said that, while the suggested
amendnent sounded innocuous, it could pose a danger to the bal ance of the

resolution. Her delegation trusted that renegotiation of the text was not the
intention of any menber of the Council.

M. AGGREY (CGhana) said that the Council should not prolong the
di scussion at the current stage, but should take action. |Its recomendation
woul d be transmitted to the General Assenbly for action at its fifty-first
session, and in the interim the informal discussions could continue.

M. ZAVAN - NI A (Cbserver for the Islamc Republic of Iran) said that
he did not agree with the argument that the draft resolution represented a

consensus text that could not be altered. |t had been brought before the
Council precisely so that it could be discussed further. He believed that the



E/ 1996/ SR. 45
Engl i sh
Page 8

proposed amendnent should not be rejected outright; however, he could accept the
text as it stood.

M. REYES RODRI GUEZ ((Cbserver for Cuba) said that while Cuba had
agreed to the consensus text, it supported the proposed amendnent which was both

rel evant and appropriate. The Council was perfectly within its rights to amend
the text of draft resolutions referred to it by any of the functional
conmi ssi ons.

Ms. MOHAMED (Mal aysia) said that while her del egation agreed, in
principle, with the Lebanese anmendnent, it felt that it would be nore
appropriate to discuss the matter at the next session of the General Assenbly.

Ms. BROM (Janmica) and Ms. KABA (Cbte d'lvoire) said that the
consensus text should be adopted as agreed and that the proposed anendnent coul d
be referred for discussion at the General Assenbly.

M. HAVDAN (Lebanon) stressed that his del egati on had sought nerely to
i nprove the consensus text, and to ensure that it reflected the views of all
concerned. Lebanon would not hanper the work of the Council. However, it
reserved the right to raise the issue once nore at the upcom ng General Assenbly
sessi on.

M. AKBAR (Pakistan), M. MMHAMED (Mal aysia) and Ms. CASTRO de BARI SH
(Costa Rica) associated thenselves with the statenent just made by Lebanon.

M. MEKDAD (Coserver for the Syrian Arab Republic) endorsed the
statenent by the representative of Lebanon and expressed the hope that other

del egations would take note of the inportance of the issue.
M. REYES RODRI GUEZ ((Coserver for Cuba) said that his del egati on hoped
that the flexibility that the representative of Lebanon and ot hers had shown

woul d be taken into consideration at the General Assenbly discussion.
The PRESI DENT said he took it that the Council wi shed to adopt the
draft resol ution.

Draft resolution Il was adopted.
The PRESIDENT invited the Council to take action on the draft
resol utions and draft decisions contained in chapter |, sections B and C of the

report of the Commi ssion on Crine Prevention and Criminal Justice (E 1996/ 30)
Draft resolutions | to Il

Draft resolutions | to Il were adopted.




E/ 1996/ SR. 45
Engl i sh
Page 9

Draft resolution IV
Ms. TAMLYN (United States of Anmerica) suggested that the Council
shoul d postpone consideration of the draft resolution, in view of its budgetary

inplications and the fact that the report had been issued | ate.
Draft resolution V

Ms. KATOH (Japan) said that the draft resolution did not accurately
reflect discussions at the Commission. The phrase "taking into account the

growi ng dangers of |inks between organized transnational crime and terrori st
crime" should be deleted from paragraph 4 (b), since the Conm ssion had not
adopted it at its discussions. Sinmlarly, the phrase "including a code of
conduct or other instrunent" should be del eted from paragraphs 8 and 9.

Ms. BUCK (Canada) said that since there had been problens with the
wor di ng of paragraph 4 (b), it mght be wi se to postpone the discussion so that
parties could check their notes on the natter

Ms. KATOH (Japan) asked the Secretariat to provide clarification on
the matter.

The PRESI DENT said that consideration of draft resolutions IV and V
woul d be post poned, on the understandi ng that postponenent woul d not be taken as

an opportunity to rework the texts thensel ves.
Draft resolution Vi

Ms. TAMLYN (United States of America) referred the Council to her
previ ous statenment and requested a postponenent of consideration of the draft

resol ution.
The PRESI DENT said that the postponenent should not be taken to
i ndicate that the draft resolutions would not be di scussed before the end of the

current session.

Draft resolutions VII to X

Draft resolutions VII to X were adopt ed.

Ms. KATOH (Japan) drew attention to a typographical error in the fifth
preanbul ar paragraph of draft resolution I X. The correct reference should be to
resol uti on 1989/ 64.

M. RONQUI ST (Sweden) said that, while Sweden had joined in the
consensus on draft resolution I X, it believed that the death penalty constituted
i nhuman puni shnent and was not justified under any circunstances. |t was
neverthel ess inportant for those countries which had not yet abolished the death

l...



E/ 1996/ SR. 45
Engl i sh
Page 10

penalty to effectively apply certain safeguards, including those contained in
the Council's resolution. For its part, Sweden would continue its efforts to
abol i sh the death penalty.

Draft decisions |I and |

Draft decisions | and Il were adopted.

The PRESIDENT invited the Council to consider the draft resolutions
and draft decisions contained in chapter 1, sections A and B of the report of
t he Commi ssion on Narcotic Drugs (E 1996/ 27).

Draft resolution 1

M. KHAM S (Budget Division, United Nations Ofice at Vienna) said

that he wished to anend the statenent which was contained in annex |V to the

report. Should the Council decide to adopt draft resolution 1, there would be
no progranme budget inplications for the biennium 1996-1997. |f the Genera
Assenbly decided at its fifty-first session to convene a special session of the
Assenbly in 1998, the progranme budget inplications would be dealt with in the
context of the proposed programme budget for the bi enni um 1998-1999.
Draft resolution 1 was adopt ed.

Ms. ESPINOSA (Cbserver for Mexico) said that the draft resol ution

just adopted was a reflection of the broad support shown at the Council's

recently concluded high-level segnent for the holding of a special session of
the General Assenbly devoted to the fight against the illicit production, sale,
demand, traffic and distribution of narcotic drugs and psychotropi c substances
and related activities.

Ms. KATCOH (Japan) wel coned the Council's decision, adding that it was
essential to begin the preparatory work without delay in order to ensure the
success of the special session

Concerted action was needed to conmbat noney |aundering and, in that regard,
t he Commi ssion on Narcotic Drugs should consider at its followi ng session the
recomrendati ons on noney | aundering nmade by the International Narcotics Contro
Boar d.

Japan supported the United Nations Systemw de Action Plan on Drug Abuse
Control as a vital tool for the coordination and enhancenent of drug abuse
control activities within the United Nations system Finally, given the high
priority attached to United Nations drug control programes, adequate resources



E/ 1996/ SR. 45
Engl i sh
Page 11

shoul d be nade available to the United Nations International Drug Control
Pr ogr anme.

M. GARCIA MORI TAN (Argentina) wel comed the Council's decision and
expressed the hope that a final decision on the proposed convening of a special

session would be taken by the General Assenbly at its fifty-first session.
Ms. ALZATE de Cl FUENTES (Col onbia) said that Colonbia would lend its
full est cooperation to the process of convening a special session of the General

Assenbly devoted to the problem of narcotic drugs.
M. REYES RODRI GUEZ ((oserver for Cuba) said that, together with the
ot her sponsors of the draft resolution, Cuba would continue to work towards the

goal of making the proposed special session of the General Assenbly a reality.
Ms. LIMUCO (Philippines) said that the proposed special session

woul d focus attention on the need for a concerted international effort to conbat

the illicit production, sale, denmand, traffic and distribution of narcotic drugs

and psychotropic substances and related activities.

Draft resolution Il

Draft resolution Il was adopted.

Draft resolutions 111 and IV
M. SHAPIRO (United States of Anerica) said that his del egation had
not had enough tine to consider the progranme budget inplications of draft

resolutions Il and |V because it had received the report of the Conm ssion on
Narcotic Drugs only a short while before. |t therefore requested that
consideration of the draft resolutions should be postponed to a later stage in
t he session.

Consi deration of draft resolutions Ill and IV was post poned.

Draft resolution V

Draft resolution V was adopt ed.

Draft resolution VI
Ms. ALZATE de Cl FUENTES (Col onbia) said that the draft resolution
woul d contribute to the solution of a crisis which affected all societies.

Col unbia pledged its fullest cooperation to international efforts to elimnate
t he scourge of drug abuse.
Draft resolution VI was adopt ed.

Draft decisions | to IV

Draft decisions | to |V were adopt ed.




E/ 1996/ SR. 45
Engl i sh
Page 12

The PRESI DENT proposed that the Council should take note of the report
of the Secretary-General on the inplenentation of the United Nations Systemwi de
Action Plan on Drug Abuse Control (A/51/129-E 1996/53).

It was so deci ded.

The neeting rose at 12.40 p.m




